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VISION

TO TURN AROUND THE COMPANY INTO A
PROFITABLE UNDERTAKING ITS LIFE
AND TO BE A MARKET LEADER BY BEING
THE BEST LEADER BY BEING THE BEST

MISSION

TO PROVIDE FINE QUALITY PRODUCTS
TO ITS CUSTOMERS AND BRING THE
COMPANY INTO PROFIT TO INCREASE
SHAREHOLDERS’ WEALTH
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ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

. NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Motica is nereby given that Annual General Meeting of the company will be heid on Wednasday the 28" October, 2020 at 09:30
Al atits registered office, JK House, 32-W, Susan Road, Madina Town, Faisalabad to transactthe following business :-

To confirm the minutes of the Annual General Mesting held on 28.10.2019.
To receive, consider and adopt the audited accounts of the company for the year ended June 30, 2020 together with the
Directors' and Auditor's reports thereon.
To appoint auditors for the year ending June 30, 2021 and fix their remuneration. The Company received anotice to appoint
/S Kreston Hyder Bhimiji & Co. Chartered Accountants for appointment as auditors of the company for the next year.
Totransact any other business with the permission of the chair,

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

FAISALABAD: 07.10.2020 AJANML SHABAB

(Company Secretary)

NOTES:

The share transfer books of the company will remain closed from 21.10.2020 to 28.10.2020 (both days inclusive). Transfer
received at the office of Share Registrar of the company, M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt) Ltd., H. M. House, 7-Bank
Sguare. Lahare, by the close of business on 20th October 2020 will be treated intime.

A memoer entitliad to attend and vote at the mesting may appeint another member of the company as a proxy to attend and
vote instead of him/her. Proxy Form duly completed should reach the Registered Office of the Company at least 48 hours
before the time of meeting.

. Any individual beneficial owner of COC entitled to attend and vote at this meeting must bring histher CNIC ar Passport to

prove his/her identity, and in case of Proxy must encluse an allesled copy of his/her CNIG or Passport. Representative of
Corporate Member should bring the usual documents required for such purpose.

. Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its 5.R.0. 779(1)/2011 dated August 18, 2011 has directed all

listed companies to ensure that Dividend Warrants should bear the Computerized Mational Identity Card (CNIC) Numbers of
the registered members. Members who have not yet provided attested copies of their valid CNICs / NTNg (in case of
corporate entities) are requested to send the same directly to the Share Registrar at aforementioned address.

In pursuance of the directions given by SECP vide SRO 787 (10/2014 datec September 8, 2014, those shareholders who
Cesire to receive Notice & Annual Financial Statements in future through email instead of receiving the same by Post are
advised to give their formal consent along with their valid email address on a standard request from which is availabla at the
Company's website i.e. www.asimtextile.com and send the said form duly filled in and signed along with copy of his/her
CNIG / Passport to the Company’s Share Registrar. Please note that giving email address for receiving of Notice & annual
Financial Statement instead of raceiving the same by post is aptional, in case you do not wish to avail this facility please
ignore this notice and, in such case, Nofice & Annual Financial Statement will be sent at your registered address, as per
normal practice.

. Pursuantto section 132(2) of the Companies Act, 2017, if company receives consent from shareholders holding aggregate

10% or more shareholding residing at geographical location to participate in the meeting throughvideo conference atlgast 7

days prior to the date of meeting, the company will arrange video conference facility in that city subject to availability of such

Eﬂci]iw in that city. To avail this facility please provida following information and submit it to the registered office of the
omparw.

l/We. - R0 i S R o e A o R bein a member of ASIM TEXTILE

MILLS LIMITED, holder of ..........................Ordinary Shares as per Register Folio No./COC A/C

sk nmrmcym e s nereby opt for Video conference facilityat...................

Signature of members

f/\em:}em of the Company are requested to immediately notify the change of address, if any, and ask for consolidation of their
folio numbers.




ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

CHAIRMAN, S REVIEW

We are pleased to present the financial results of the Company. The Sale has decreased in this
year as compared to the last year due to Novel Corona Virus (COVID-19) which effected the
company operations and hence the company has earned profit of Rs. 18.645 million in this year
as compared to the last year profit of Rs. 56.169 million.

We are confident that our existing business trend will continue adding to sustainable growth to
achieve better results during the current year and the rise in other avenues of business will
further add value to the net worth of the company.

The management remains committed to maintain focus on sustaining the financial performance
of your company. We thank our shareholders, customers and staff for their support and trust in
the company.

In the end, I would like to thank the Board of Directors for their valuable contribution and
guidance throughout the period.

For and on t;ejhalf of the Board

October 07, 2020

Faisalabad.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your Board of Directors is pleased to present 31%annual report together with audited accounts of the
Company for the year ended June 30, 2020,

e © June30,2020 | June30,2019
fpcrating Indicatoess Rupeesin Millions | Rupees in Millions
Sales 1471.670 1786.446
Gross Profit 47,201 109.344
Provision for taxation 10.014 - 24425
Profit after Taxation ' 18.645 56.169
Profit per share 1.23 3.70

Future Outloolk:

The Company is steadfast on its stated strategic initiatives aimed at enhancing margins by drastically
lmproving operations and alfecting across the board cost reductions through efficiency in manufacturing.
Steps are taken to improve the financial health of the company by overhauling plant and machinery to
improve product quality and performance. Despite of the very challenging business conditions, we are
immensely hopeful for positive prospects in future

Compliance to good Governance and social requirements

Your company is committed to fulfill its responsibilities towards good governance, social and
envirenmental responsibilities. To protect health and safety of employees and environment, company
provides able conditions and means to ensure compliance.

Human Respurce and industrial relations

Under a defined and documented criteria in line with national and international laws people are recruited
and hired. This is demonstrated at all level beyond any racism, cast, sex or religion and respects human
rights, ethics and standards.

Court Cases:

The company has instituted a suit in the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore against Faysal Bank Limited
claiming damages on account of acquisition of un-remunerative agricultural land on the advice of FIBL for
not providing timely cash finance facilities despite written commitments and for charging illegal profits
against the principles of Islamic Banking and in contravention of the objective clause of its Memorandum of
Association, Articles of Association and against circulars issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. The amount
claimed for the first two counts is Rs.141.831 million (including claims of Central Excise Duty), whereas the
amount of last count has been left for the Court to determine.

The counter suit filed by the Faysal Bank for recovery of Rs. 454.502 million along with costs and cost of
funds before the Honorable Lahore High Court (Single Judge), Lahore has been adjudicated on 04.06.2015
against the company. The company has filed an appeal in Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore (Division
Bench) vide R.F.A. No. 1372 /2015 on various grounds including the company being condemned unheard.

However, in this regard directors’ and the management of the company are confident that these cases are
based and being contested on strong legal grounds and are likely to be decided in Company's favor.

Auditor's Observations:
The auditors have expressed uncertain in their audit report about the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern due to accumulated loss of Rs.124,026 million against the paid up share capital of Rs. 151.77



million and the provision for cost of fund has not been accounted for in the Financial Statements in line
with the decision of Lahore High Court, Lahore in counter suit filed by Faisal bank Limited as described in
the auditors’ report to the members:

[n this regard the management of the company is optimistic that there are no significant doubts about the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern as described in Note. 1.2 Of these Financial Statements.

The management has filed an appeal in the Lahore High Court, Lahore (D.B) vide R.F.A. No. 1372/2015 on
various grounds including the company being condemned unheard. The management of the company is of
the opinion that this case is based and being contested on strong legal grounds and is likely to be decided in
Company's faver. Therefore, no provision for cost of funds is accrued.

Regarding the auditor's reservation of going concern relating to note 1.2 of financial statements, the
management of the company is making its strenuous efforts, optimal production strategies and effective
cost controls to improve the profitability of the company. The management is quite optimistic that
balancing and modernization of plant and machinery, improvement in future industry situation and better
production efficiency will definitely improve the future financial results, The management positively looks
forward to counter all challenges and is firmly committed to deliver the best possible results and will
continue to meet its objectives and goals. Based upon these aspects and continuing financial support from
directors and associates, the financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis.

We confirm that:

a) Financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the requirement of the Companies Act
2017and present fairly state of affairs, results of its operation, cash flows and changes in equity.

b) Proper books of accounts have been maintained in the manner required under Companies act
2017.

) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

d) International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
preparation of financial statements and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed
and explained.

e) The system of internal control is being implemented and monitored.
f}  There are no significant doubts about the company’s abilit ¥ Lo continue as a going concern.

g) There has been no material departure from best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in
listing regulations.

h) The key operating and financial data of last six years is annexed to this report.
i) Outstanding duties and taxes, if any, have been disclosed in the financial statements,

i} The Chairman’s review dealing with the performance of the Company during the year ended June
30, 2020 forms part of this report.

k) Value of investments of Employees Provident Fund was Rs, 12.854 /- millions for the year ended
June 30, 2020,

1] Company has arranged in-house training program for its Directors.
m) Statement of compliance with the Best Practices of Corporate Governance is annexed.

n) We confirm that directors and CFOQ and their spouse and minor children have made no transactions
of the Company’s shares during the year.

o) The pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2020 is annexed with this report,



-

During the year under review, five meetings of the Board were held:-

| Mr. Zahid Anwar 4 Mr, Zeeshan Zahid | 5 l

| Mrs. Rukhsana Begum 5 Ch. Ghulam Murtaza Buttar g <l
Mr.mran Zahid 5 Mr. Zulgarnan 4 [
Mr. Ali Raza Zafar 4

The Audit Committee held four (4) meetings during the year. Attendance by each member was as
follows:

Eh Ghulam Murtaza Buttar 1 Mr. Zeeshan Zahid 3 Mr. Zulgarnan. 4

| Chairman J

The HR Committee held one (1) meeting during the year. Attendance by each member was as
follows:;

Ch Ghulam Murtaza Buttar 1 ‘ Mr. Zeeshan Zahid 1 | HArAlE Hae £afai 1
Chairman |

Considering the accumulated losses brought forward, no dividend is recommended for the year
ended June30, 2020,

Present auditors, M/s Arshad Raheem & Co. Chartered Accountants have retired and M/s Kreston
Hyder Bhimji & Co Chartered Accountants offers themselves for appointment. The Audit Committee
has recommended the appointment of M/s Kreston Hyder Bhimji & Co as auditors for the year
2021,

The remuneration of the Board members is approved by the Board itself. However in accordance
with the code of corporale Governance it is ensured that no Director takes part in deciding his own
remuneration.

No material changes and commitments alfecting the financial position of the Company have
occurred between the end of the financial year to which this balance sheet relates and the date of
the Director's Report.

Transactions undertaken with related parties during the financial year have been ratified by the
Audit Committee and approved by the Board.

{In beha i directors.
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STATEMENT oF COMPLIANCE
WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE oF CORPORATE GGVERNANEE] REGUM'I‘IDNS, 2019

ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JuNg 30,2020

The Company has complied with the requirements of the regulations in the following mannep:

L

2,

b

e

o

The total number ofdirectors are 7 g5 perthe following:

d.  Male: & members
b.  Female: 1 members

The composition ol the board is as fg) lows:

|

|'_t:a—::e§or_y__ o [ Names - =
| a} Independent Director Mr. Zulgarmain

[ Mr, Ali Raza Zafay,

|_h} Other | Non-ax?cutjve [Zl_l'!‘ieﬂ:Lnrs_lI Ttrjtr.ghan Zahig o

| Mr. Ghulam Murtara Buitap

L |

Mr., Imran Zshig
Mis. Rekhsang Bepum

| ©) Executive Directors M Zaid iy —————— _I

—_

—_—

The directors have confirmed that none of them i5 serving as g director on more than Seven
listed companies, including this com pany (excluding the Jj sted subsidiaries of listed holding
companies where applicable],

The Company has Prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that ap Propriate steps have
been taken g disseminate j¢ throughout the tompany along with jrs supporting policies ang
Procedures,

The Board hag developed a vision / mission statement, overg) torporate stratepy apg
significant policies of the Company, The Board has ensured that complete record of
particulars of the significant policies along with thejr date of approval or Updating is
maintained hy the compary.

The directors wore apprised about the chy Nges in the Code, applicable laws ang their duties
and responsibilitjes to effectively Manage the affairs of the Company for and an behalf of (he
sharehalders. Four directors of the Company having 14 vears of education ang 15 years of



10,

11.

14.

experience are exempt from the requirement of directors’ Lraining program, under purview
of regulation 19(2) of the Listing Companies Code of Corporate Governance, 2019, whereas,
three board members do not qualify for exemption. The Company will arrange the Lraining
program for the directors as provided under the Regulations in future.

The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, company secretary and head
of internal audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and
complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations:

Chief financial officer and Chief executive offlicer duly endorsed the financial statements
before approval of the Board.

. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee

1. Mr.Zulqarnain (Chairman)
2. Mr. Zeeshan Zahid (Member)
3. Mr, Ch, Ghulam Murtazs Buttar (Member)

b) HR and Remuneration Committee
L. Mr.Ali Raza Zafar (Chairman)

2. Mr. Zeeshan Zahid (Member)
3. 0r. Ch. Ghutam Murtaza Buttar (Member)

- The terms of reference of the audit committee and HR and Remuneration Committee have

been formed, documented and advised Lo the committee for compliance.

The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/yearly) of the committes were as per
following:

a) Audit Committee

The meetings of the Audit Committee were held at lesst onee every guarter prior Lo
approval of interim and final results of the Company as required by the Regulations.

b) HR and Remuneration Committep
The meeting of the HR and Remuneration Committee was held ance during the year.

The Board has set up an effective internal audit [unction who is considered suitably qualified
and experienced for the purpese and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the
company.

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the quality control review program of the Institute of Charled
Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and
all their partmers are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants [IFALC)
guidelines on code of ethics.as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
and that they and the partners of the firm invelved in the audit are not a close relative
(spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief
financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the COmpany,

- The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appuinted o

provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other
regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed 1FAC
guidelines in this regard,



18, We conflem thatall requirements of regulations 3, 6,7, B, 27,32, 33 and 36 of the Negulations
have been complied with; and

19, Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than reguladons 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32,
33 and 26 are below,

Sr. No. | Non-Mandatory Requirement Reg.No. | Explanation |
1 Directors’ Orieatation Program. 19 Four directors of the Company |
Al companies  shall make having 14 years of education and
appropriate arrangements to carry 15 years of experience are
out orientation for their directors | . exempt from the requirement of
to acquaint them with these directors'  waining  program,
Regulations, applicable laws, their under purview of regulation
dutles and responsibilities o 19{2) of the Listing Companies
enable them to effectively govern Code of Corporate Goverpance,
the affairs of the listed company 2019, whereas, three board
for and on behalf of shareholders. members do not gualify for
exemption. The Company will
arrange the training program for
the directors as provided under
b the Regulations in future.

Zalbid X nni--};ﬁ-)w-m% éﬁf‘fﬂﬁ

PMlace: Falsalabad,

October 07,2020




ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

KEY OPERATING & FINANCIAL DATA FOR LAST SIX YEARS

Particulars 2019 Z018 2017 2016 2015 2014 |
Hinancial Fusition : 1. = ==
Faid up capital 150770 151770 151.771) 1531.770 151.770 151770
Fixad assers BH9.392 288,394 _ HYL550 BB 166 621.197 76,73
Accumulated depreciation 422.675 /BOEG | 381333 354.768] 329.093 309.769
Current assets 484.858 406,424 353.990 202,636 357.598 358601
_ Current liabilites G&E. 505 Gh24T4 G038 044.98% 649,528 650308
Sales 1786.446 1433635 | 1214020 _ 1092539 1129.414 1,314,143
Otherincome 8586 3433 3.548 4861 16.494 10.820
Pre tax profil/(loss) B0.593 5B.746 39.939 [13.283) [13.435) 70,475
_ Taxation charge/[credit) 24.425 17.009 10613 0.004 2163 11828
Pre tax profit/loss) to sales % 4.51 4.1 .29 {l.22) (1.19) .35
Pre tax profit/{loss) to capital % 531 B 2632 (8.75) (8.85) 4644
Current ratio 1173 1:1.61 1:1.5% 1: 144 1: 158 1155
Faid up value per share [Rs,) 1006 LO.0D 1000 10.00 1030 10.00
Earnings,[loss) after tax per share (Rs,) 370 275 L.93 [D.58) (1.18) 189
Cash dividend% =
Break up value per share (Rs) [0.01] (4.0 [7.22) [2.897) [5.63) [H.H3]




ARSHAD Raneem & Co

Chartered Accountants

YOUSAF ISLAM HOUSE
30-Link Farid Kot Road,

MNear A.G, Office, LAHORE.

Tel:  (92-42) 7236147 - 7312500
Fax: (92-42) 7236168

F-mail: arshad.raheemi@email.com

Review Report to the Members
on Statement of Compliance with best Practices of Code of
Corporate Governance

We have reviewed the Statement of Compliance with the best practices (the statement) contained
in the Code of Corporate Governance (the Code) prepared by the Board of Directors of Asim
Textile Mills Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2020 to comply with the
requirements of Listing Regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange where the company is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is that of the Board of
Directors of the Campany. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can
be objectively verified, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's
compliance with the provisions of the Code and report if it does not and to highlight any
non-compliance with the requirements of the Code. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with
the Code.

As part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Company to place before Audit Cormmittee, and upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval of its related
party transactions, distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those
that prevail in arm’s length transaction and transactions which are not executed at arm's length
price and recording proper justification for using such alternate price mechanism. We are only
required and have ensured compliance of requirement to the extent of approval of related party
transaction by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of Audit Committee. We have not
carried out any procedure to determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at
arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material
respects, with the best practice contained in the Code of Corporate Governance as applicable to
the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020.

A AD RAHEEM
Chartered Accountants
Engagement Partner: Arshad Raheem

Lavore: 0 7 OCT 2020




ARsHAD Raneem & Co

{Chartered Accountants

YOUSAF ISLAM HOUSE
39-Link Farid Kot Road,

MNear A.G. Office. LAHORE,

Tel:  (92-42) 7236167 - 7312500
Faxr (92-42) 7236168

F-mail: arshad.raheem@gmail.com

INDEPEMDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
{("the Company"), which comprises the slatement of financial position as at June 30, 2020, the
statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in
equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we
state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the effects of the matters stated in basis for opinion paragraph, the statement of
financial position, statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement
of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof
confarm with the international Financial Reporting Standard (IFRSs) as applicable in Pakistan, and,
given the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XX of 2017), in the manner so required
and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at June 30, 2020
and of the profit, total comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
then ended.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
{the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code, We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Short term borrowings include Morahaba Finance obtained from Faisal Bank Limited amounting to
Rs. 417.590 million on 31st October 1999 in respect of which the Company has filed suit against
bank for charging illegal profits against principal of Islamic Banking and in contravention of objective
clause of Memorandum of Association, Article of Association and against circulars issued by State
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Bark of Pakistan. Faisal Bank Limited filed a counter suit which has been adjudicated on 04-06-2015
against the Company (Note 18 & 19) as a result of which the Company has to settle the loan along
with profit and cost of fund. Profit on these loans amounting to Rs 194161 million have already been
provided for; however the litigation is decided against the Company further provision or cost of funds
has not been accounted for, having been undeterminable at this stage, by the management as the
Company has filed an appeal in Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore (Division Bench) vide R.F.A
Mo.1372/2015 based on infield favorable judgments of Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore

Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern

We draw attention of the members to the contents of note 1.2 to the annexed financial statements,
which indicates that its accumulated loss stands at Rs. 123.611 million, the Company's current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 153.831 million. Although the Company has earned net
profit of Rs. 18.644 million during the current year but these factors indicate the existence of material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Koy audit mattcrs arc thosc matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Geing Concern section, we have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters o be communicated in our audit report.

Following are the Key Audit Matter(s):

[ 8. Key Audit Matter(s) How the Matter was addressed in audit
1 ND

1. | coviD-19

| Refer note 22 to the financial We considered the uncerainties arising from
statements regarding the impact of COVID-19 in planning and performing our audit.
| COVID-19. Cur procedures included:

As part of the preparation of the | « Evaluated the company's most recent financial

financial statements, management is results forecasts and liquidity analysis
responsible to assess the possible underlying their going concem assessment and
effect of COVID-19 on the company's tested the integrity of the forecasts, including
liquidity and related ability to continue mathematical accuracy:

as going concern and appropriately

disclose the results of its assessment in | « Assessed the reliability of the forecasted cash
the financial statements. The COVID-19 flows by comparing with the historical

\} :
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pandemic is an  unprecedented

challenge for humanity and for the |

| economy globally, and at the date of the
financial statements
subject to uncertainty.

Inventories

« Discussed
its effects are

performance and market expectations.

the most recent forecast with
management to understand their views on
going concern and the potential impact of
COVID-19 on the company;

« Evaluated the assumptions in respect of
projected available future cash flows from
operating, financing and investing activities and
projected key ratios for covenant calculations:

+ Inspected supporting documentation such as
contracts and underlying calculations and
correspondence  with  financing and other
relevant parties;

* Evaluated the company’'s assessment of other
accounting estimates  within the financial |
slalements which could be Impacted by the |
challenging economic environment resulting
from COVID-19, including trade receivable and
inventory provisioning; and

« Considered the appropriateness of the
disclosure made in the financial statements in
respect of the potential impact of COVID-15.

_____

inventories amounting to Rs., 138.079
million as at the reporting date, being
13% of the total assets of the company.

There is a risk in estimating the eventual
NR of items held, as well as assessing
which items may be slow-moving or
obsolete.

The Company's principal accounting
policy on stores and spares and stock in
trade are disclosed in notes —4.2 and
4.3 to the financial statements,

end inventory was in line with 1AS 2. This included
challenging judgments taken regarding
obsolescence and net realizable value provisions.
We obtained assurance over the appropriateness
of management's assumptions applied in
calculating the value of inventories by:

* Altending the year end stock take to gain
comfort over the existence and condition of
inventories and internal controls designed by
the company.

» Obtaining the final valuation sheets of the
inventories and tracing quantities from waorking
papers of observation of physical stock taking.

» Obtaining understanding of internal controls
designed by the company over recording of

3
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Wi

Trade Debts

purchases and valuation of the inventories and
testing their operating effectiveness on sample
basis.

= Assessing historical costs recorded in the
inventory valuation by performing test of
details on purchases. Evaluating that the
valuation basis used are appropriate and
consistent including analysis of costing of
different items on sample basis.

s Asgsessing the management's determination of
the net realizable values and intended use of
the inventories including performing tests on
the sales prices fetched by the company
befare and after year end.

s Performing analytical and other relevant audit
procedures,

» Considering the adequacy of the company's
disclosures in respect of inventories.

Refer note 9 to the accompanying

| financial statements, The Company's

trade debtors were Rs, 62.811 million as
at June 30, 2020 which is a significant

| balance.

We identified the recoverability of trade
deblors as a key audit matter because
estimating the recoverable amount
involves  inherent  uncertainty

significant management judgement.

and |

Qur audit procedures fo access the valuation of
trade debts, amongst others, included the
following:

» Obtaining an understanding of and
assessing the design and implementation of
management's key internal controls relating
to credit control, debt collection and making
allowances for doubtful debts;

+ Assessing, on a sample basis, whether
items in the frade debtors ‘aging report
were classified within the appropriate
ageing bracket by comparing individual
items in the report with underlying
documentation;

+« Assessing the assumptions and estimates
made by the management for the provision
for doubtful debts, if any; and

« Comparing, on a sample basis, receipts
from customers subsequent to the financial
year end relating to trade debtor balances
as at June 30, 2020 with underlying
documentation.




ARSHAD RAHEEM & Co

Char tered Accountants

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
{(information included in the Director's report but does not include the financial statements and
auditor's report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, the reguirecments of
the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

The Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasanably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
Judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncerainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide to the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:
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b)

ARSHAD RAHEEM & Co

Char tered Accountants

proper books of account have been kept by the Company/branches as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017),

the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the
notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017}
and are in agreement with the books of account and returns,

investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were in
accordance with for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIl of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is Arshad Raheem.

ARSHAD RAHE
Chartered Accountants

LAHORE

0 1 OCT 2020




ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2020

2020 2019
ASSETS MNote Rupees Rupees
MON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 5 531,954 937 466,717 972
Long term deposits 8 15,038,156 15,038,158
546,993 093 481,756,128
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores and spares 7 18,487 318 11,554,100
Stock in trade 8 138,079,285 168,649,353
Trade debts g 62,811,731 72622,128
Advances and prepayments 10 69,325,008 42 553,113
Short term investment 11 18,340,946 17,357 641
Balance with statutory authorities 12 232,575,457 30420124
Cash and bank balances 13 217 631,187 141,701,947
557,260,032 484,858,403
1,104,254 025 966,614,531
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized capital
17,500,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 175,000,000 175,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
15,177,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each,
fully paid in cash 151,770,000 181,770,000
Accumulated loss (124,025 951) {151,895,854)
Surplus on revaluation of
property plant and equipment 14 245 985 909 191,560,975
273,729958 191,431,121
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred liabilities 15 119,017,735 108,678,501
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 16 a%,754,203 51,630,265
Accrued mark up 17 194,161,422 194,161,422
Provision for income tax - 5,122,115
Short term borrowings 18 417,590,707 417,590,707
711,508,332 668,504 509
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 19 - 2
1,104, 254,025 GE66,614,5631

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Sales

Cost of sales

Gross Profit

Operating expenses

Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

Other operating incemsa

Finance cost

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year

ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Profit per share - basic and diluted

Mote

20

22

23

24

25

28

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

1,471,670.352 1,786,445,500
1,425,469 625 1,677,101, 721
46,200,727 108,343,778
30,059,956 30,886 112
2,388,695 G,284 765
32,448 651 37,280,877
13,752,076 72,082,902
14,953,011 8 586,458
28,705,087 80,645,400
45,783 56,267
28,658,304 B0,593,133
10,014,487 24,424 546
18,644,807 56,168,587
1.23 3.70

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

Profit for the year 18,644 807 56,168,587
Other comprehensive income :
ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Unrealized profit / ( loss) on changes in

fair value of investment 863,305 (2,571,488
Total comprehensive income for the year 19.628.112 53 597 101

The anfexed notes 1 to 35 form an inlegial pail of these financial statements.
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ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

a) CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for non cash and other items:
Depreciation

Profit on deposit accounts

Gain on disposal of fixed asset

Provision for WWF

Profit on deposit with SNGPL

Finance cost

Cash generated before changes in working capital

Changes in working capital

{Increase) [ decrease in current assets
Stores and spares
Stock in trade
Trade debts
Advances and prepayments
Balance with statutory authorities

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

Finance cost paid

Taxes paid

Insurance claim

Staff retirement gratuity paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

b) CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Addition in property, plant and equipment
Profit on deposits
Net cash used in operating activities

MNet increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Note

13

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
28,659,304 80,593,133
23,696,675 24,741,861

(14,948,372)  (7,068,028)

s (951,552)
836,205 1,840,870
5 (498,274)
45,783 56,267
38,289,885 08,814,276
(6,943,218) 92,058
30,570,068 2,184,185
9,810,396 || (27.591,975)
(26,771,895)|| (36.366,103)
941,597 (1,367,059)
47 287,643 (1,032,820)
54,894,591  (64,081,713)
93,184,276 34,732,563
(45,783) (56,267)
(27,256,711)|| (20.039,682)
2 1,000,000
(50,914) (164,780)
(27,353,408)  (19,260,729)
65,830,868  15.471,834
(4,850,000)|[ (2,100,000)
14,948,372 7,431,759
10,098,372 5,331,759
75929240 20,803,593
141,701,947 120,888,354
217,631,187 141,701,947

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Revaluation
e surplus on Accumulated
apital plant and Loss Total
equipment
---------------- - RUpees -----—s===mme-mem-
Balance as at July 01, 2018 151,770,000 199,848 464 (213,784,444 137,834,020
Profit for the year - - 56,168,587 56,168,587
Oither comprehensive loss - - (2.571,486) {2,571 486)
Transfer of incremental depreciation
on revalued assels for the year - (11,838,271) 11,839,271 e
Tax effect on incremental depreciation - 3,551,782 {3,551 782) -
Balance as at June 30, 2019 151,770,000 191 560,875 (151,899 854) 191,431,121
Profit for the year - - 18,644,807 18,644,807
Other comprehensive income - - 983,305 083,305
Revaluation surplus arise during the year G2 670,725 - 62,670,725
Transfer of incremental depreciation {11,613,790) 11,613,790 -
on revalued assets for the year
Tax effect on incremental depreciation 3,367,999 (3,367,998) -
Balance as at June 30, 2020 151,770,000 245 985,508 {124,025,951) 273,729,958

The annexed notes 1 to 36 farm an integral part of these financial statements.
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ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

1.

1.1

1.2

2.7

2.2

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

The Company is limited by shares and incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 2017 Ilts
shares are quoted at Karachi, Islamabad and Lahore Stock Exchanges, with effect from January 11,
2016 all three Stock Exchanges merged into Pakistan Stock Exchange. The principal business of
the Company is manufacturing and sale of yarn. The Mill is situated at Tehsil Jaranwala, District
Faisalabad in the Province of Punjab and the registered office of the Company is situated at JK
House, 32-W, Susan Road, Madina Town, Faisalabad.

Going concern assumption

The Company has accumulated loss of Rs. 123.611 million (2019: Rs.151.889 million) as against
issued, subscribed and paid up capital of Rs.151.770 million : and its current assets have been
decreased from its current liabilities by Rs. 153.831 million (2019: Rs.183.646 million) as at June
30, 2020.These factors indicate the existence of material uncertainty which may cast significant
doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and therefore the Company may
be unable to discharge its liabilities and realize its assets in the normal course of business.

Inspite of the huge accumulated losses and negative equity, the management of the company is
making strenuous efforts, optimal production strategies and effective cost controls to improve the
profitability of the Company. The management looks forward positively to counter all challenges and
is firmly committed to deliver the best possible results and will continue to meet its objectives and
gnals Based upon these aspects and continuing financial support from directors and associates, the
financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis.

SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS AFF ECTING THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL
POSITION AND PERFORMANCE

All significant ftransactions and events affecting the Company’s financial position and
performance during the year have been adequately disclosed in the notes o these financial
statements where required.

The novel corona virus (COVID-19) emerged and since then, the condition has continued to
deteriorate. On January 30, 2020, The International Health Regulations Emergency Committee
of the World Health Organization declared the outbreak "Public Health Emergency of
International Concern”. Many countries including Pakistan have enacted protection measures
against COVID-19, with a significant impact on economic activities in these countries. The
evolution of COVID-19 as well as its impact on the global and the local econamy is hard to
predict at this stage. As of the release date of these financial statements, there has been no
specifically material quantifiable impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial condition or
results of operations.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting

standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan
comprise of:

international Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

Pravisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companias Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.
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Asim Textile Mills Limited
NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
Effective in current year and are relevant to the Company
The Company has adopted all the new standards and amendments to the following approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan which became effective during the year:

IFRS 9: Financial Instruments

IASB has published the complete version of IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments', which replaces the
guidance in IAS 39, ‘Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement'. This final version
includes requirements on the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities; it
also includes an expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model
used today.

The adoption of IFRS @ have changed the classification of financial assets and related disclosures.
As a result of this, financial assets of the Company previously classified as “loans and receivables”
have now been classified as "at amortized cost”. The adoption of standard doesn't affect the
reported figures of the financial assets and liabilities of the Company, accordingly the opening equity

s at June 30, 2019 has not been restated in these financial statements as allowed in IFRS 9.

The details of new significant accounting policies and the nature and effect of the changes to
previous accounting policies are set out below.

i Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The revised provisions on the classification and measurement of financial assets
{(applicable mainly to trade receivables and other receivables) and financial liabilities
(mainly trade creditors and interest-bearing debt) have not affected company's financial
information, Consequently, the comparative figures have not been restated on the
introduction of IFRS 8.

ii Impairment of financial assets

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss
model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under 1AS 38, The expected credit
loss model requires an entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognized.

The guiding principle of the expected credit loss (ECL) model is to reflect the general
pattern of deterioration or improvement in the credit guality of financial instruments. The
amount of ECLs recognized as a loss allowance or provision depends on the extent of
credit deterioration since initial recognition. Under the general approach, there are two
measurement basis:

- 12-month ECLs (Stage 1), which applies to all items (from initial recognition) as long as
there is no significant deterioration in credit quality.

- Lifetime ECLs (Stages 2 and 3), which applies when a gignificant increase in credit risk
has occurred on an individual or collective basis.

The Company's financial assets include mainly trade debts, deposits, advances, other receivables
and bank balances.

The Company's trade receivables do not contain financing component (as determined in terms of
the requirements of IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers"), therefore, the Company is
using simplified approach, that does not require the Company to track the changes in credit risk, but,

\nstead, requires to recognize a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
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Asim Textile Mills Limited

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses using a

lifetime expected credit loss provision for trade receivables. To measure expected credit losses on a

collective basis, trade receivables are grouped based on similar credit risk and aging.

The expected loss rates are based on the Company's historical credit losses experienced over the
three year period prior to the period end. The historical loss rates are then adjusted for current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the Company's customers. The
Company has identified the gross domestic product (GDP), unemployment rate and inflation rate as
the key macroeconomic factors.

Transition

The Company has used the exemption not to restate comparative periods and any
adjustments on adoption of IFRS 9 are to be recognized in statement of changes in equity
as on July 1, 2019, However, the adopticn of IFRS 9 did not have any impact on opening
retained earnings as on July 1, 2019 Accordingly, the comparative information is
presented as per the requirements of IAS 38.

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

IERS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ is effective for accounting period beginning on or
after July 1, 2018, This standard has replaced IAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations and it

applies to all revenue arising from contracts with customers.

IFRS 15 has replaced IAS 18 which covers contracts for goods and services and IAS 11 which
covers construction contracts. IFRS 15 introduces a single five-step model for revenue recognition
and establishes a comprehensive framework for recognition of revenues fram conftracts with

customers based on a core principle that an entity should recognize revenue representing the

transfer of promised goods or services to customers at amount that reflects the consideration to

which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

There is no material impact of transition to IFRS 15 on the financial position of the Company and
there is no effect on the accounting policies of the Company in respect of revenue from contracts

with Customers.

IFRS 9: Financial Instruments

Financial Instruments - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation and
modifications of financial liabilities. The amendment allow debt instruments with
negative compensation prepayment features to be measured at amortized cost
or fair value through other comprehensive income. The amendment also clarified
that gains and losses arising on modifications of financial liabilities that do not
result in derecognition should be recognized in profit or loss.

IFRS 16: Lease

Leases - IFRS 16 replaces existing leasing guidance, including IAS 17 ‘Leases’,
IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for
lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease
payments, There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of
low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar 1o the current standard i.e.
lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases.

January 1, 2019

January 1, 2018
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IAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements

Presentation of Financial Statements - amendments to its definition of material to
make it easier for companies to make materiality judgments. The materiality
depends on the nature or magnitude of information, or both. An entity assesses
whether information, either individually or in combination with other information,

is material in the context of its financial statements taken as a whole.

IAS 8: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - The
amendments are intended to make the definition of material easier to understand
and are not intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS. In
addition, the IASB has also issued guidance on how 10 make materiality
judgments when preparing general purpose financial statements in accordance
with IFRS.

3.3 Accounting standards and interpretations that are not yet effective

3.31

332

333

IAS 1 & 8 Definition of material

Amendments to IAS 1, 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and 1AS 8,
‘Accounting Policies, Changes In Acuounting Estimates and Errors’ are intended
to make the definition of material in IAS 1 easier t0 understand and are not
intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards. In
addition, the IASB has also issued guidance on how to make materiality
judgments when preparing their general purpose financial statements in
accordance with IFRS Standards. Refined definition of materiality - Infermation is
material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide
financial information about a specific reporting entity.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

Under existing IAS 1 requirements, companies classify a liability as current when
they do not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the end of the reporting period. As part of this
amendment, the requirement for a right to be unconditional has been removed
and instead, the amendment requires that a right to defer settlement must have
substance and exist at the end of the reporting period.

IFRS 17: Insurance Contracts

Insurance Contracts - address the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of Insurance contracts. The objective of IFRS 17 is
to ensure that an entity provides relevant information that faithfully represents
those contracts. This information gives a basis for users of financial statements
to assess the effect that insurance contracts have on the entity's financial
position, financial performance and cash flows.

January 01,2020

January 01,2020

January 1, 2020

January 1, 2022

January 01,2021
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

41 Property, plant and equipment
41.1 Operating fixed assets

Property, plant and equipment except free hold land, building on freehold land, plant & machinery,
electric installations and capital work in progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Building on freehold land, plant & machinery and
electric installations are stated at revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Freehold land is stated at revalued amount.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with them will flow to
the entity and its cost can be reliably measured. Cost incurred to replace a component of an item of
the property, plant and equipment is capitalized and the asset so replaced Is retired from use.
Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss account during the period in which
they are incurred.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of land, buildings and property, plant and
equipment improvements is recognised in other comprehensive income and presented as a
separate component of equity as “Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment”, except to
the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in profit
or loss, in which case the increase is credited 1o profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. Any decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of land, buildings
and property, plant and equipment improvements is charged to profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the balance, if any, held in the revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment
relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. The revaluation reserve is not available for
distribution to the Company's shareholders. The surplus on revaluation buildings and property, plant
and equipment improvements to the extent of incremental depreciation charged is transferred to
unappropriated profit.

Depreciation is charged to income applying the reducing balance method so as to write off the
historical cost of the assets over their expected useful life at the rates mentioned in property, plant
and equipment note - 5.

Depreciation on additions during the year is charged from the month the asset is available for use
while no depreciation is charged in the menth in which the asset is disposed off. The residual values
and useful lives are reviewed by the management at gach financial year end and adjusted if impact
on depreciation is significant.

Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are included in current income.
4.1.2 Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress is shown at cost less any identified impairment loss and represents
expenditure incurred on property, plant and equipment during the construction and installation. Cost
also includes applicable borrowing costs. Transfers are made to relevant property, plant and
equipment category as and when assels are available for use.

4.2 Stores and spares

These are valued at lower of moving average cost and net realizable value except items-in-transit
which are valued at cost accumulated to the balance sheet date. Stores, spares and loose tools are
regularly reviewed by the ma nagement to assess their net realizable value (NRV). Provision is made
for slow moving and obsolete store items when so identified.
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4.3 Stock in trade
These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined as follows:

Raw material - At factory Monthly average cost

- In Transit Invoice value plus direct charges in
respect thereof.

Work in process and finished goods Prime cost including a proportion of
production overheads.

VWastes At net realizable value

Met realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated cost of completion and the estimated costs necessary to be incurred in order to make the
sale.

4.4 Trade and other receivables

Trade debts are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtful receivables
based on review of outstanding amounts at the year end. Other receivables are recognized at
nominal amount which is fair value of the consideration to be received in future. Balances
considered bad are written off when identified.

4.5 Short term investment

Investments which are intended to be held for an undefined period of time but may be sold in
response to the need for liquidity or changes in interest rates are classified as available for sale.

Subsequent to initial recognition at cost, these are measured at fair value. The Company uses
latest stock exchange quotations to determine the fair value of quoted investments. Gain or losses
on available for sale investments are recognized directly in other comprehensive income until the
investments are sold or disposed off, or until the investments are determined to be impaired, at that
time cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income, is re-classified
from equity to profit and loss as re-classification adjustment.

4.6 Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees (functional and presentation
currency) at the rates of exchange approximating those appearing on the dates of transactions.
Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at rates of exchange
prevalent on the balance sheet date. All exchange differences arising from foreign currency
transactions/ translations are charged to profit and loss account.

4.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and cheques in hand and at banks and include short
term highly liquid investments, The cash and cash equivalents are readily convertible to known
amount of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of change in value.

4.8 Staff retirement benefits

The Company changed its policy for staff retirement benefits as on 31st March, 2008 from staff
retirement gratuity to provident fund and staff retirement gratuity up to that date is stated on
termination basis.

At present the Company cperates an approved Provident Fund Scheme covering all its permanent
employees. Equal monthly contributions are made, both by the Company, and the employees, to the
fund at the rate of 8.33% of the basic salary. The Company's contribution to the fund is recognized
as expense for the year.
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4,9 Taxation
Current Taxation
Under normal law

The current taxation is computed on the basis of profit for the year adjusted for fiscal purposes,
minimum tax u/s 113 or Alterate Corporate Tax (ACT) u/s 113C of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001, which ever is higher, after taking into account the tax credit or rebate, if any.

Under presumptive tax regime

Taxation in relation to export of goods under section 154 read with section 169 is provided on the
basis of Presumptive Tax Regime in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001.

Deferred Taxation

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary
differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation of the taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences
roverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax
is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

4,10 Trade and other payables

Liabilities in respect of trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in future for goods and services received whether or not billed to the
Company.

4.11 Provisions

A, provision is recognized when the Company has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event when it is probable that an outflow of resources embedying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be
made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current best
estimate.

4.12 Contingencies

The assessment of the contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment as the
gutcome of the future events cannot be predicted with certainty. The Company, based on the
availability of the latest information, estimates the value of contingent assets and liabilities, which
may differ on the occurrence/ non- occurrence of the uncertain future event(s).

4.13 Related party transactions and transfer pricing

All transactions with related parties are carried out at arm's length. The prices are determined in
accordance with comparable uncontrolled price method.
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4.14 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
construction of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
charged to profit and loss account in the periad of incurrence.

4.15 Dividend and other appropriations

Dividend is recognized as a liability in the period in which it is approved. Appropriations af profits are
reflected in the statement of changes in equity in the pericd in which such appropriations are made,

417 Impairment

The management assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset
is impaired. If any such indication exists, the management estimates the recoverable amount of the
asset. If the recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the cash generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount by charging the impairment loss
against profit and loss account for the year.

4.18 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial
statements only when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off and the Company intends either

to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,

4.19 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Company
and revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at fair value of consideration received
or receivable and is recognized on the following basis;

Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of the ownership
of the goods have been passed to the customer usually when gocds are delivered / dispatched and
title has passed.

Profit on short term investment is recognized on the time-apportioned basis.

4.20 Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the histarical cost convention except
property, plant and egquipment referred in note 5.1 are carried at revalued amounts. In these
financial statements, except for cash flow statement, all the transactions have been aceountad for
on accrual basis.

4.21 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statemenls have been presented in Pakistani Rupees which is also Company's
functional currency.
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4.22 USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as
applicable in Pakistan, requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of setting up and applying the Company's
accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, Revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate
is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

Significant areas requiring the use of the management estimates in these financial statements are
as follows:

Useful life of the depreciable assets
Store and spares
Provision for doubtful debts
Taxation
Caontingencies
However, assumptions and judgments made by management in the application of accounting

policies that have significant effect on the financial statements are not expected to result in material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the subsequent years.



5 PROPERTY, PLANT AMD EQUIPMENT

ASIM TEXTHE MILLS LIMITED

COST f REVALUED AMOUNTS DEPRECIATION BOOK VALUE
Deletion
PARTICULARS As al i Addiliens transfier As at As at Detetian "s at As at
Revaluation
July 01, Surplus duringhe | during the June 30, Juy 01, during the For the June 30, June 30, Rale
2018 Yeal period 2020 2019 year Year 2020 2020
Land - freshold 53,508,000 10,248,000 - B3, 754,000 - - - 63,754,000
Budding on freehold land 151,418,124 33,571,715 - 184 985 839 55 8E8,TT1 4,917,300 B0, 787,071 124,202,768 5%
Flant and machineny 618,729,530 15,661,282 4,850 000 - B39,440,812 327,224 301 14,832 600 342,058,501 287,363,911 5%
Electric installation 31,754,357 24,404,843 - - 568,165,000 17,758,516 1.802 B58 19,362,372 35,706 628 10%
Factory equipment 355,750 = = = 358,750 324,789 - 2,088 336,885 18,865 10%
Furniture, fixture and B50.633 - - 655,633 453,721 - 16,581 510,312 140,321 10%
Office equipment 2618122 - - 2618122 1,821,069 - 68,703 " 1,990,792 B2ZT7330  10%
Vehicles 30,348 332 30,349,332 18,071,669 . 2,255,529 21327218 9022114 20%
Rupees: June 2020 8BS 352 848 84,063 640 4 850000 O78 326, 484 422 674,876 23,696,675 448,371,551 531,954,937
COST/! REVALUED AMOUNTS DEFPRECIATION BOOK VALUE
Aaeditionsy Deletion
PARTICULARS Az at Revsluation Iransfers transter As at As at Delation Az at As at
Jduly 01, Surplus during the: during the June 30, July 01, during the Far the June 30 Jume 30, Rate
2018 Yaar period 2014 2018 year Yaar 2018 2014
Rupees
Land - freehald 53,508,000 X - 53,508,000 - - - 53,508,000 F
Building on freehold land 151,418,124 - - 151,418,124 50,840 810 5,028,881 55 869, TT1 05 548 353 5%
Plant and machinery G618, 104,530 - 825000 - 618,726,530 311,902,884 15,321,437 327,224,301 281,505,229 5%
Eleciric installation 31,754, 35T - 31,754 38T 16,204,534 1,554 082 17,769,616 15,954 841 10%
Faclory equipment 355,750 - - 355,750 332 460 2,329 334, 788 20,961 10%
Furmniture, fixhure and 659,833 - - 659,633 475,260 - 18,435 483 721 165812 10%
Office equipmant 2 618,122 - - 2618122 1,643 641 - TT 448 1,921,089 637,033 10%
\ehicles 28,975,912 - 1,475 000 1,101,580 30,348,332 17,388,452 1,053,132 2,738,369 19,071,682 11,277643 20%
Rupees: June 2019 BEE 384 426 - 2,100,000 1,109,580 BED. 392 B44 398 586147 1,053,132 24,741,861 4232 G674 ETH AER 717,972




Cost of sales

administrative expenses

572 Had there been no revaluation,

the related figures of f

2341823

23,696,675

regnold lan
20 would have been 85 follows:

ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
51 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as under;
21,354,852 21,607 608

2,834 252
24,741,861

d, building on freehold land.

plant and machinery and electric installations a8 at June
R T
2020
Cost ﬁccumylalted Writken down
depreciation value
e {Rupens} e

Freehold land 4,082,000 - 4,062,000
Building on freehold land 40.631,000 341 12,607 6,518,493

Plant and machinery 483,937 478 316,322,274 167 615,204
20,077,383 14,425,531 5,651,852

Electric installations

i

548,707,861

354,660,312 183,847,549

N

S

Cost

2019

pccumulated Written down

depreciation value
eeemmeem (RUpPEES) ===
Fraehold land 4,062,000 - 4,082,000
Building an frechold land 40,631,000 33,769 428 5,061,572
307,554,369 171,533,108

Plant and machinéry

Electric installations

479,087,478
20,077,383

543,857 861

13,707.547 £.279,836

355,121,344 188,738,517 _

53 The total area of the land of company is 56 kanal and 18 marla which is used for production unit

located at 32- KM, Sheikhupura, Faisalabad.
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2020 2019
& LONG TERM DEPOSITS Note Rupees Rupees
Security deposits

- SNGPL 6.1 12,258,028 12,258,028
-FESCO 2,734,078 2,734,078
- WASA 8,550 8,550
-ChOC 37,500 37,500

15,038,156 15,038,156

6.1  This represents the security amount deposited with Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited
(SNGPL) for supply of natural gas to the Company.

7. STORES AND SPARES

Stores 12,037,918 6,893,655
Spares 6,459,400 4 660,445
18,497,318 11,554,100
8., STOCK IN TRADE

Raw material 120,169,326 151,462,795
Work in process 7,973,295 7,637,117
Finished goods 9,936 664 9,548,440
138,079,285 168,649,353

9. TRADE DEBTS
Considered good

Lacal - unsecured 9.1 62,811,731 72,622 128
62,811,731 72622128

9.1 These are unsecured but considered good by the management of the Company.

10. ADVANCES AND PREPAYMENTS
Advances-considered good

- Advances to employees 262,500 280,500

- Advances to suppliers 10.1 61,443 615 26,381,811
Letter of credit 2,886,895 -

Prepayments 4,334,381 15,513,186

Accrued profit 397,618 397,618

69,325,008 42,553,113

10.1  This includes amount of Rs.37,607,000/- (2019: Nil) paid to Zeeshan Energy Limited, an
associated undertaking on account of purchase of electricity.

11. SHORT TERM INVESTMENT

Available for sale

MAFA Government Securities Liquid Fund 11.1 12,467 396 11,077 414
JS Investments (JS Islamic Fund) 11.2 5,873,550 6,280,227
18,340,946 17,357,641

11.1 These have been valued by using published net asset value (NAVY) as at 30th June, the
number of units held by the Company are 125,693.4644 units (2019: 113,208.1192 units).

11.2 These have been valued by using published net asset value (NAV) as at 30th June, the
number of units held by the Company are 75,032.5785 units (2019: 75,032.5785 units).
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2020 2019
12. BALANCE WITH STATUTORY AUTHORITIES Mote Rupees Rupees
Sales tax ' 29,478,524 30,420,121
Income tax - net 3,086,933
32 575457 30,420,121
13. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 1,161,285 477 496
Cash at bank
In current accounts 134 189,613 344 83,467,700
In deposit accounts 13.2 26,856,558 57,758,751
216,469 902 141,224 451
217,631,187 141,701,947

131  [tincludes USS, 1,000/ (2018: USE.1,000/-) and SAR. 2,461/- (2019: SAR.Z 461/-)

13.2 Deposits with commercial banks yield profit at the rate of 3.75% to 12.25% (2019: 3.75% to
9.75%) .

14. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Balance as on July 01, 191,560,875 199,848, 464
Surplus on revaluation arise during the year
Rkl - 62,670,725 :
254,231,700 199 848 464

Incremental depreciation on revalued property, plant and equipment

for the year (11,613,790) (11,B839,271)
Related effect of deferred tax liability 3,367,890 3551782
(8,245,791) (8,287 489)

Balance as on June 30, 245,985,909 191,560,975

First revaluation of company's building on freehold land and plant and machinery was carried out
as on September 30, 1995 by an independent valuer M/s Igbal A. Nanjee & Co. Lahore on the basis
of depreciated replacement values.

Second revaluation of company's freehold land, building on freehold land and plant and machinery
has been carried out on September 30, 2000 by an independent valuer Inspectorates Corporation
International (Pvt) Ltd., Lahore and the same has been verified by SBP's approved auditors on the
basis of depreciated replacement values.

Third revaluation of company's freehold land, building on freehold land, plant and machinery and
electric installations has been carried out on June 30, 2012 by an independent valuer M/s Nizamy
Associates, Faisalabad on the basis of depreciated replacement values.
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Fourth revaluation of company's freehold land, building on freehold land, plant and machinery and
electric installations has been camied out on Sep 30, 2015 by an independent wvaluer
M/s Amir Evaluators & Consultants, Peshawar on basis of depreciated replacement values.

Fifth revaiuation of company's freehald land, building on freehold land, plant and machinery and
electric installations has been caried out on June 30, 2020 by an independent valuer
M/s 5.A Associates, Lahore an basis of depreciated replacemeant values.

The fair valuation of the revalued assets are considered to represent a level 3 valuation based on
significant non-cbservable inputs being the location and condition of the assets. The fair value are
subject to change owing to change in input. However, the management does not expect there to be
a material sensitivity to the fair values arising from the non-cbservable inputs. The basis of
revaluation for items of these fixed assets were as follows:

Freehold land

Froperty brokers, dealers and estate agents were contacted to ascertain the asking and selling
prices for properties of the same nature in the immediate neighborhood and adjoining areas.
Neighboring properties which have bean recently sold or purchased, were investigated to ascertain
a reasonable selling / buying price. Properties that were up for sale were examined for asking price.
An average of the above values was then assigned to the property.

Building on freehold land

Construction specifications were noted for each factory and residential building and structure and
current construction rates were used to obfain replacement values of building, to which a
depreciation formula was applied, based upon the Company's estimates of balance life to arrive at
the current assessed value.

Plant and machinery

Plant and machinery have baen evaluated [ assessed by keeping in view their present physical
condition, the remaining useful life / economic life and technological obsolescence. Further, new
replacemant values wera arrived by using current local and foreign market values for the similar
type of plant and machinery. These current local and foreign market values were taken into account
on the basis of technical obsolescence, efficiency, maintenance, replacement and other related
factors involved.

Electric installations

These were evaluated / assessed by keeping in view their present physical condition and the
remaining useful life / economic life. Further, new replacement values were arrived by using current
market values for the similar type of assets, These current market values were taken into account
on basis of efficiency, maintenance, replacement and other related factors involved.



15.

16.

DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Deferred taxation
Staff retirement gratuity

15.1 DEFERRED TAXATION

Balance as on July 01,
Adjusted during the year

Balance as on Juna 30,
This comprise of following:

Deferred tax liability:

Taxable temporary differences relating to

operating assets

Taxable temporary differences relating to surplus
on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

Deferred tax assets:

Deductible temporary differences on tax losses
Staff retirement benefits

MNote

151
15.2
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2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
118,636,604 105,246 BS6

381,131 432 045
119,017,735 108,678,901
106,246,856 109,964 918

12,389,748 (3,718,082)
118,636,604 108,246,856
26,492 446 32 166,701
92,254 686 74,208,770

(110,528) {129,614)
118,636,604 106,246 857

The liability of deferred tax has been computed by applying the tax rate of 28% .

Deferred tax debit balance is recognized on staff retirement benefits.

15.2 STAFF RETIREMENT GRATUITY

Balance as on July 01,
Paid during the year
Balance as on June 30,

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors

Accrued expenses

Advances from customers
Provident fund trust

Due to related parties-Directors
Withholding tax payable

Sale tax payable

Workers' Welfare Fund
Workers' profit participation fund

16.1
16.2

432,045 596,825
(50,914) (164,780)

381,131 432,045
16,139,492 27,733,815
52 817 600 13,579,322
9,049,538 1,070,663
B8OB,3T73 701,830
4,325,335 1,868,802
514,157 374,864
11,680,143 16,304
2,777,165 1,840,870
1,552,400 4,343,895

59,754,203 51,630,265

16.1 This represents amount due to provident fund trust for the month of June -2020 of which

payment was made at July 15, 2020 .

16.2 This represents directors current account balances maintained with the company.
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2020 2019
17. ACCRUED MARK UP Note RUPEEE Rupeeg
Accrued markup on secured morabaha finance 174 184,161,422 194 161,422

17.1 The company has ceased the payment of markup since July 01, 2006, as it has filed a suit
against Faysal Bank Limited in the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore. The facts of the
litigation are explained in note 19.1.

18. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

From banking company

Secured
Morabaha | 18.1 340,901 898 340,901,898
Morabaha Il- Secured 18.2 74,145,100 74,145,100
Unsecured
Interest free bank overdraft 2,543 708 2,543,709

417,590,707 417,500,707

18.1 It represents morabaha finance created by Faysal Bank Limited by converting various
morabaha finances into long term morabaha-1 at an interest rate of 13% per annum.

18.2 It represents an interest free morabaha finance by Faysal Bank Limited by converting various
unpaid markups into non profit morabaha-Il.

18.3 The above mentioned morabaha finances are secured against the first charge of Rs. 5056
million on fixed assets and personal guarantees of directors and Chief Executive of the
Company.

18.4 The Company is not repaying the morabaha finances as it has filed a suit against Faysal Bank
Limited in the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore. The bank has also filed a counter suit
praying for a decree to be passed in its favor for a sum of Rs. 454.502 million against the
defendants jointly and severally, with cost of funds at the rate of 20% or as cerified by State
Bank of Pakistan from date of default and 20% liquidated damages plus service charges and
all costs, charges, expenses payable or to be incurred by the plaintiff bank till the final
payment / realization of the afore-mentioned amount. The facts and status of the litigations are
further explained in note 18.1.

18.5 The Company has ceased the repayment of the overdraft, as it has filed a suite against Faysal
Bank Limited in the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore. The facts of the litigation are
explained in note 19.1.

18.6 Further to note 18.1 to 18.5 since these facilities are in default / subjudice, the recognition and
measurement of these financial liabilities under IFRS 9-Financial Instruments are required to
be carried at amortized cost, These are carried at cost as their amortized costs are impractible
to determine. Hence, these are reclassified from long term financing to short term borrowings
far all the relevant periods, whether present or future and have accordingly been regrouped /
reclassified.
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19. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

19.1 The Company has instituted a suit in the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore
against Faysal Bank Limited claiming damages on account of acquisition of un-
remunerative agricultural land on the advice of FIBL for not providing timely cash
finance facilities despite written commitments and for charging illegal profits against
the principles of islamic Banking and in contravention of the objective clause of its
Memorandum of Association, Articles of Association and against circulars issued by
the State Bank of Pakistan. The amount ¢laimed for the first two counts is Rs.141.831
million {including claims of Central Excise Duty), whereas the amount of last count
has been left for the Court to determine.

The counter suite filed by the Faysal Bank for recovery of Rs. 454.502 million along
with costs and cost of funds before the Honorable Lahore High Court (Single Judge),
Lahore has been adjudicated on 04.06.2015 against the company. The company has
filed an appeal in Honourable Lahore High Court, Lahore (Division Bench) vide R.F.A.
Mo, 1372/2015 on various grounds including the company being condemned unheard.
Due to litigations, the Bank is not responding and cenfirming the balance to the
company. Having been undeterminable at this stage, provision for cost of funds has
not been accounted for.

19.2 By virtue of Finance Act, 2017 , Section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 was
amended. Through the revised provision, a tax equal to 7.5 percent of accounting
profit for the year is required to be levied on every public company, other than a
scheduled bank and modarba, if distribution of cash dividend or bonus shares of at
least 40 percent of the accounting profit after tax for the year is not made within six
months. However, the management is of the view that this amendment is opposed to
the principles of economic growth and has, therefore, having intention to challenge the
amendment before Honourable Lahore High Court. Legal advisor and management is
confident that discriminatory provisions for this tax would not affect any financial
outflow of the company, If any adverse inference is drawn by the revenue authorities.
It is worthwhile to mention here that constitutional pelitions have already been filed by
some companies before Honourable High Courts challenging the tax and the
Honourable High Courts have granted stay order in this respect of levy of the above
tax. Accordingly provision amounting to Rs. 2 895 427/- for the year ended June 30,
2017, Rs 2,937,309 for the year ended June 30,2018 and Rs 4,029 657 /- for the year
ended June 30, 2019 has not been made in these financial statements in respect of
the additional tax liability and the management expects a favourable outcome in this
respect.



20. SALES - NET

21,

Local:
Yarn sales
Waste sales

Gross sales
Less: Sales tax

Commission

COST OF SALES

Raw material consumed
Stores and spares consumed
Packing material consumed
Salaries, wages and benefits

Fuel and power

Repairs and maintenance

Insurance
Depreciation

General expensas

Work in process

Balance as on July 01,
Balance as on June 30,

Cost of goods manufactured

Finished goods

Balance gz on July 01,
Balance as on June 30,

211 RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED

Balance as on July 01,
Purchases

Balance as on June 30,

Mote

211

212
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2020

Rupees

2019

Rupees

1,696,383,604

1,761,901 449

26,010,821 25,001,881
1,722,394,425 1,786,903,330
1,722,394,425  1,786,903,330

250,276,883 =

447,190 457,830
250,724,073 457,830
1,471,670,352  1,786,445,500
1,020,569,762  1,245,904,700
23,117 572 27,544,711
20,916,854 23,184,685
148,579,971 138,150,289
185,790,704 172,026,437
2,020,707 3,861,986
2,846,022 3,007,171
21,354,852 21,807,609
996,583 1,231,861
1,426,193,027 1,636,810,449
7,637,117 6,108,933

(7,873,295) (7.637,117)

(336,178) (1,530,184)

1,425.656,849

1,635,289,265

9,549,440 51,361,896
(9,936,664) (9.549,440)
(387,224) 41,812,456

1,425,469,625

1,677,101,721

151,462,796
989,276,292

113,284,709
1,284,002,787

1,140,739,088
(120,169,3286)

1,397,367,496
(151,462,796)

1,020,568,762

1,245,904,700

21.2 This includes a sum of Rs.3,663,436/- (2019: Rs. 3,660,077/-) in respect of defined contribution

plan.
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2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Director's remuneration 3,800,000 3,800,000
Staff salaries and benefits 22.1 14,066,808 15,565,267
Postage and telecommunication 534 524 604,553
Electricity, Fuel and water 1,296,748 855,968
Printing and stationary 168,341 163,258
Travelling and conveyance 338,527 286,505
Entertainment 76,240 105,482
Fees and subscription 1,321,833 880,758
Legal and professional 812,804 800,400
Rates and taxes 274,257 238,905
Vehicle, running and maintenance 3172 836 3,175,001
Auditors' remuneration 222 445 000 445,000
Insurance 675,837 824929
Advertisement 11,700 15,000
Depreciation 5.1 2,341,823 2,834,252
Others 622,678 300,834
30,059,958 30,986,112
221 This includes a sum of Rs.414,252/- (2019: Rs, 439,318/-) in respect of defined contribution plan.
22.2 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
Statutory audit 365,000 365,000
Half yearly review 55.000 55,000
Out of pocket expenses 25,000 25,000
445,000 445,000
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Workers' profit participation fund 1,552,400 4,343 805
Workers Welfare fund 836,295 1,840,870
2,388 695 6,284,765
. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Income from financial assets
Profit on deposit accounts 14,848,372 7,088,028
Exchange gain on foreign currency translation 4,539 68 644
Profit on deposit with SNGPL - 498,274
Profit on disposal of fixed assets - 951,552
14,853,011 B,586,498




25. TAXATION
Current
- For the year

-  Prior year

Deferred

25.2 Status of income tax assessment

Asim Textile Mills Limited
2020 2019

Rupees Rupees

22,081,763 28,142,608

(3,044,099) :
(9,023,167) {3,718,082)

10,014,497 24,424 546

Tax provision made in financial statements taking into consideration of admissibility of expenses.
A comparison of last three years tax assessment is presented below:

2020 2,019 2,018
Rupees
Income tax provision for the year-accounis 22 081,763 28,142 e0a 17,927,332
Income tax as per tax assessment-ufs 120
of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 22,081,763 28,142 €08 17,827 332
26. PROFIT / {(LOSS) PER SHARE-BASIC AND DILUTED
Profit for the year 18,644,807 55,168,587
Weighted average
number of ordinary
shares 15,177,000 15,177,000
outstanding during _
Profit per share-basic and diluted 1.23 3.70
There is no dilutive effect on the basic eamings per share of the Company.
27. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EXECUTIVES
2020 2019 2020 2018 2020 2019
mmmmmeee (RUPEES]) wmmmeme
i 1,500,000 1,500,000 2,400,000 2400000 2,983,429 2472723
alary
- - - = 1,193,371 989,089
House rent aliowance
e 5 - - = 208,343 247 272
Utilities allowance
- - - - 248,520 2058978
Provident fund
Tt 1,500,000 1,500,000 2,400,000 2,400,000 4,723,663 3,915,082
Mumber of persans 1 " 2 3 5 3
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28. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties
which comprise of associated undertakings and other key management personnel. Amounts due
from and due to related parties, if any, are shown under relevant notes to financial statements.
Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer, Direclors and Executives is explained in Note 28
Transactions with related parties other than those specifically mention in relevant notes is as follows.

Party Nature of 2020 2019
relationship  Mature of transactions Rupees Rupees
Provident fund trust Post Company's contribution to 4,077 588 4,099,396

employment provident fund

CEO/directorsimembers Relaled party  Expenses paid on behalf of 2 456,533 1.217.752
CEQ/directors/members

Zeeshan Energy Limited Related party  Advance against electricity
purchase 37,607,000 -

There were no transactions with key management personnel except those covered under their terms of
employment.

29. PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION

Installed capacity after

conversion inte 20/s count (Kgs) 11,407,803 11,407,803
Actual production of yarn after
conversion into 20/s count (Kgs) B,677 912 10,601,522

29.1. Reason for short fall:
It is difficult to determing precisely the production / rated capacity in spinning units
since it fluctuates widely depending on various factors such as efficiency of
labour, quality of raw material.

. EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND TRUST

The follawing information is based on latest un-audited financial statements of the fund:

Size of the fund (Rupees) __16,186223 13,622,064

Cost of investment made (Rupees) 12,606,825 12,606,825

Fair value of investment (Rupees) 15,120,413 12 770,435

Percentage of investment made (%) 93 84
301 The breakup of fair value of 2020 2019

investments is:

Rupees % of total Rupees % of total

NEP FAM Ltd. 3837671 2537 3,351,071 26.24

CDC Trustee UBL Fund 2,015,907 13.32 1,826,777 14.30

Others (Fixed deposit) 7,000,000 46.27 7,000,000 54.81

Bank balances 2,275 835 15.04 592,587 4.64

15,129,413  100.00 12,770,435 100.00

30.2 The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of

Section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The average number of employees for the year ended June 30, 2020 were 506 ( 2018: 544) and
number of employees as at June 30, 2020 were 556 (2019: 551).
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13. DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL SHARES ISLAMIC INDEX

Following information has been disclosed with reference to circular no. 14 of 2016 dated April 21,
2016, issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan relating to "All Shares

Description

Explanation

iy Advances
iy Long term deposits
i) Short term borrowings

iv) Relationship with banks having Islamic
windows

MNon-interest bearing
Both Interest and non-interest bearing
Both Interest and non-interest bearing

Following is the nature of relationship of the
Company with the banks having Islamic window of
operaton:

1. Al Barka Bank Pakistan Limited (Islamic)
2. Dubai |slamic Bank (Islamic)

3. Bank Al Habib Limited {Conventional)

4. United Bank Limited (Conventional)

5. National Bank of Pakistan (Conventional}
6. Faysal Bank Limited (Cenventional)

7. MCE Limited (Conventional)

8. Meezan Bank Limited (Islamic)

g, J S Bank (Conventional)

10.Samba Bank Limited{Conventional)
11.Habib Bank Limited{Conventional)

v) Bank balances as at June 30, 2020. Rupees
Placed under interest arrangement 26,794,555
Placed under Shariah permissible arrangement 62,003

vi} Interest income on bank deposits for the year
Placed under interest arrangement 14,934,111
Placed under Shariah permissible arrangement 14,267

vii) Unrealized loss on short term investments
Placed under Shariah permissible arrangement 553,305

viii) All sources of other income

ix) Exchange gain

Disclosed in note 25

Earned from actual foreign currency re-translation

Disclosures other than above are not applicable to the Company.

3
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capifal with a
view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk. Taken as a whole,
the company is exposed to market risk comprising interest rate risk, currency risk and other pricelequity risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The company's principal financial liabilities comprise long term borrowings, short
term borrowings and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance
for company's operations. The company has various financial assels such as deposits, trade debts,
prepayments and other receivables and cash and bank balances, which are directly related to its operations.
The company's finance departments oversees the management of these risks and provide assurance to the
company's senior management that the company's financial risk-taking activities are governad by appropriate
policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with
company policies and risk appetite. No changes were made in the objectives, policies, procedures and
assumptions during the year ended June 30, 2020.. The policies for managing each of these risks are
summarized below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk, and other
price risk, such as equity risk. Financial instruments susceptible to /affected by market risk include loans,
bomrowings and deposits. The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate 1o the position as at June 30,
2020 and 2019,

34.1.1 Interest rate risk:
Interest rate risk represents the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company has no significant lung term interest bearing financial asscts. The Company's interest
rate risk arises from long term financing. Berrowings obtained at variable rates expcses the Company
ta cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings obtained at fixed rate exposes the company lo fair value
interest rate risk.

2020 2018
Rupees Rupees
Fixed rate instruments
Financial liabilities
Short term bomowings 415,045,958 415,045,998
Financial assets
Security deposits with SNGPL 12,258,028 12,258,028

Floating rate instruments
Financial assets

Bank balances-deposit account 26.856.,558 57,756,751
Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit and loss. Therefore, change in interest rate at the balance sheet date would not affect profit or
loss of the Company.
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
If interest rates at the year end date, fluctuates by 1% higher / lower with all other variables held
constant, profit after taxation for the year would have been Rupees 268,565/~ ( 2019: Rupees 577,587/
) higher / lower, The analysis is prepared assuming the amounts of bank balances cutstanding at the
balance sheet date were outstanding for the whole year.

34.1.2 Currency risk / Foreign Exchange risk:

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial
transactions or receivables or payables that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.

Financial assets include Rs. 278 503/- (2019: Rs. 273,864/-) which were subject to currency risk.
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At June 30, 2020, had the cumency been weakened/strengthened by 5% against the foreign currency
with all other variables held constant, profit for the year and equity would have been
Rs. 13,825/- (2019 ; Rs. 13,693/-) higher / lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains / losses
on translation of foreign currency denominated trade debts and foreign currency bank accounts.

34.1.3 Other price risk / Equity Price risk:

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices such as equity price risk. Equity price risk is the risk
arising from uncertainties about future values of investments in securities. As at balance sheet date,
the Company is not exposed to equity price risk as the Company do not have any investments in equity
market,

Credit risk and concentration of credit risk:

Credit risk Is the risk representing accounting loss that would be recognized at the reperting date if cne party to
a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or its failure to perform duties under the contract as
contracted. Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar
business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
phligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentration of
credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a
particular industry. The Company is mainly exposed to credit risk on trade debts amounting to Rs. 62.811
million (2019: Rs. 72.622 million). Company seeks to minimize the credit risk exposure through having
exposure only to customers and suppliers considered credit worthy and also by obtaining advance against
sales from customers. The carrying values of financial assets which are neither past due nor impaired are as
under:

2020 2019

FINANCIAL ASSETS Rupees Rupees
Long term deposits 15,038,158 156,038,156
Trade debts B2,811,731 72,622,128
Advances, deposits and other receivable 397 616 397,616
Shaort term investment 18,340,945 17,357,641
Cash and bank balances _217631.188  _ 141,701,947

314,219,637 247,117,488

Credit quality of financial assets

The credit quality of the company's financial assets have been assessed below by reference to external
credit ratings of counterparties determined by The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) and
JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (JCR-VI3). The counterparties for which external credit
ratings were not available have been assessed by reference to internal credit rating determined based
on their historical information for any defaults in meeting obligations.

Rating 2020 2019
Shortterm  Long term Agency Rupees Rupees
Bank balances
Al-Baraka Bank Limited Al A PACRA 109,764 1,165,486
Dubai Islamic Bank Limited A-1 Ab- JCR-VIS 14,668 14,668
Faysal Bank Limited Al+ AR, PACRA 666 BE6
Habib Bank Limited A1+ BAA JCR-VIS 24,642 67,226
JS Bank Limited Al+ Ab- PACRA 5,534 695 5,762,914
MCE Bank Limited A+ ABA FACRA 10,981 10,981
Meezan Bank Limited A1+ Al JCR-VIS 11,470 10,847
Mational Bank of Pakistan A-1+ AAA JCR-VIS 154,381 57,279
Samba Bank Limited A1 AA JCR-VIS - 851
Summit Bank Limited A-1 A- JCR-VIS 33,304 30,271
United Bank Limited A1+ AAA JCR-VIS 210,575,331 134,113,263
216,458 903 141,224 452
Short term investment
NAFA Government Securities Liquid Func  AAA(T PACRA 12,467 396 11,077,414
J5 Investments (JS Islamic Fund) AA-(N FACRA 5,873,550 6,280,227
18,340,946 17,357,641
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14.3 Liguidity risk | |
Liquidity risk reflects the company's inability in raising fun:ts_tu meet commitments. The_(_:nmpany sthprc:t:jn.lmtmn
remained below its installed normal capacity. Working capital of the Carr'!papg,f is positive as at e alance
sheat date. The Campany’s Management closely monitors the Campany's liquidity and r._‘.ash fl::w position. This
includes maintenance of balance sheet liquidity ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in terms of the
overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual customer. As a restIt of th_ese eﬂa?nl‘ts,
the working capital improved over the last year. Management also foresees that the working capital position
will become more favorable in the period to come due 1o increased revenues from the continuous operation of

i AL

The table below summaries the maturity profiles of company's financial liabilities as on June 30, 2020 and
2019 based on contractual undiscounted payments date and present market interest rates.

More than 1
Within 1 year || year and up Total
to 5 years
---ee-- [RUpEES) ~—memee
June 30, 2020
Trade and other payables 74,180,800 - 74,180,800
Accrued mark up 104,161 422 - 194,161,422
Short term borrowings 417,580,707 - 417,590,707
685,932 929 - 685,832 829
June 30, 2019
Trade and other payables 43,883,869 - 43,883,869
Accrued mark up 184 161 422 - 194,161,422
Short term borrowings 417,590,707 . 417,580,707
655,635,008 - 855,635,898

34.4 Fair value of financial instruments:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Underlying definition of fair value is the
presumption that the Company is geing concemn and there is no intention and requirement to curtail materially
the scale of its operation or to underake a transaction on adverse terms

The carrying value of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels
has been defined as follows:

- Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities [Level 1].

- Input other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) [level 2].

- Inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observation market data (that is, unobservable
input) [Level 3].

The following table presents the Company's financial assets that are measured at fair value at June 30, 2020
and June 30, 2018
30-Jun-20
Level 2 Level 3 Total
e R U PR B G mmmmmmmnn

Level 1
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30-Jun-18
Level 1 Level 2 Lewvel 3 Total
~Rupess——-==
hzsats-flaccuning fair value meas premant
Financial assets al fair value through
0l
17,357,641 - - 17,367,541

Short term Irvestments

__._.———_____-—-—-'___._-—-—-—____._——-—

valuation technique used to determine falr values

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the
reporting date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, wroker, industry groug, pricing service, or regulatory agency. and those prices represant
actual and regularly ascurrng market transactions on an arm's length basis. These instruments are included in

Level 1.
Leyel 2: The fair value of financial inetruments that are not traded in an active market 1s datermined by using
valuation {gchnigues. These yaluation technigues marximize the use of observable market data where it is

available and rely a8 little as possible on & ity specific estimates. 1f all significant inputs required to measure
fajr value of an ingtrument are sheervable markel data, the instrument is included in Level Z.

Level 3 |f one of More of tha significant inputs is not pazed on phservable market data, the instrument is
included in Level 3.

Transfer between levels of the fair valua higrarchy are recognized at tne end of the reporting period durng
which the changes have occunred.

14,5 Capital risk mManagement:
The Company's objectives when managing capital are to ensure the Company's ability not only to centinue 85
a golng concem put also o meet its requirements for expansion and gnhancament of its busingss, raximize
retum of shargholders and optimize benefits tor other stakeholders 10 maintain an oplimal capital structure and

to reduce the cost of capital.

a46 Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is 10 ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating
and healthy capital ratios in order 1o support its bUSINEss and maximize shareholder value. The Company
manages its gapital struciure and makes adjustments to it, in the Tight of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust dividend payment 10 ghareholdars, relrm
capital 1o shareholders or issue new shares. No changes Were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the year. Capital includes prdinary shares and resenes.

As on the balance shest date, the gearing ratio of the Company was a5 under:

2020 2018

Rupees Rupees

Barrowings 417,590,707 417,590,707

Total equity 273,729,958 181,431,121

o1320,665 608021828
60.40% ©6857%H

Total capital employed

Gearing ratio

=y
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CORRESPONDING FIGURES
n rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary for the purpose of

35.1 Previous year figures have bee
fication made in the correspanding figures .

comparison, However no re classi

1g.2 Figures in thase financial statements have been roundad off o the nearest Rupee.

36. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

The financial statements were authorized for issue on Qctober 07,2020 by the Board of Directors of the

Company'.
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DETAIL CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS

AS ON 30-06-2020

B CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS | TOTAL SHARES | ¥
3.1 Directors/Chief Executive Officer and their spouse and minar Children
|1 TMR 2ARHID aNWaR 3,988.300 | 16,23
[ 2 MRS RUKHEANA BESUM 2.087,100 13.75
3 (MR IMRAN ZAHID 1,516,900 g,99
d  |[MR. ZEESHAN ZAHID . 1,516,900 9.53),
5 ICH GHULAM MURTAZA BUTTAR : 50D 0.0a]
5 MR, AL| RAZA ZAFAR 500 000
[ 7 MR MUHAMMAD ZULQURNAN 500 | 0.00i
. TOTAL: _ 9,110,700 | 50.03]
5.2 Assgciated Companies, Undertakings and related partios
l ]
E TOTAL: ai .00l
3.3 NIT and ICP
l INWESTMENT CORP.OF PAKISTAM 23,5004 D.!.SL
TOTAL; 23,5001 0.15:
%4 Banks, OFls, NEFis
|1 [5AUDI PAK IND.& AGRL INV. CO. (PVT.) LTD. 12,700 0.08
2  [THE BANK OF PLINJAS, TREASUKT DIVISION. 2,000 0.06
3 [NATICMAL BANK OF PAKISTAN | 242 0.00f
[ 4 INATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN 121 0.00
[ S [FAYSAL BANK UMITED 7.500 0.05
& TRE BANK OF PUNIAB 200} 9.00
7 INATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN - TRUSTEE WING 126,800 3.84
B TOTAL: 157,163 E
5.3 Insurancé Companies
TOTAL: o 0.00]
5.6 Modarabas and Mutual Funds
[t lcDC- TRUSTEE NATIOMAL INVESTMENT (LUNIT) TRUST £32.200] 5 48|
TOTAL: 232,300] 5.48
5.7 Shareholding 5% or more
L |COC- TRLSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT [UNIT) TRIUST ' | #32.3001 S 48}
TOTAL: | 832,300/ 5.48|
5.5 General Public
[ 1998[a- acai 5,051,836] 33.29|
k- “areign ﬁ
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ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
DETAIL CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDE RS

AS ON 30-08-2020

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS TOTAL SHARES ]
il TOTAL: ' 5,051,835 33.29]
33 Others - Joint Stock Companies
[ L MAPLE LEAF CAPITAL LIMITED 1| cj
{2 INH JOLDINGS (PVT) LTD * 1,000] 201}
0 TOTAL: 1,001 0.01
5.3 Qthers - Trus:
S ' |
BB TOTAL: ai 0.00]
3.3 Others
1 TINKAGA CONSULTANTS [PVT. LTD. soo| 0.00
= TOTAL: 500| 0.00
i Grand Total: 15,177,000 mu.uE]
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ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LTD
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

FORM F PROXY
IMPORTANT

This Form of Proxy, in order to be effective, must be deposited duly completed at the Company’s
Registered Office JK House, 32-W, Susan Road, Madina Town, Faisalabad, not less than 48 hours before

the time of holding the meeting,

A proxy must be a member of the Company. Signature should agree with the specimen registered with

the company.

Please quote registered folio number

If'we

of

being a member of the Asim Textile Mills Limited and holder
of ordinary shares, hereby appoint

of

Who is also a member of the company as my/our proxy in my/our absence to attend and vote for me/fus
and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at registered office of
the Company, JK House, 32-W, Susan Road, Madina Town, Faisalabad, on 28.10.2020 at 9.30 am or at

any adjournment thereof.

as witness my/our hand this day of

2020

signed by the said

in the presence o f

Date: ' (Member's Signature)
Place (Witness's Signature)
Affix Rs.5/-

revenue stamp which must
be cancelled either by
signature over it or by some
other means
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